ARIZONA STATE LEGISLATURE

JOINT LEGISLATIVE INCOME TAX CREDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting
Thursday, December 7, 2006
1:00 p.m., House Hearing Room 4

Members Present:

Senator Ken Cheuvront Representative Steve Huffman, Cochair

Senator Jorge Garcia Representative Jack Brown
Representative Michele Reagan
Representative Steven Yarbrough

Members Absent:

Senator Dean Martin, Cochair Representative Ann Kirkpatrick
Senator Robert Burns

Senator Ron Gould

Staff:

Kitty Decker, House Research Analyst

Sean Laux, Senate Research Analyst

Justin Weaver, Senate Assistant Research Analyst

Chairman Huffman called the meeting to order at 1:35 p.m. and attendance was noted.

Review of Income Tax Credits

Tim Everill, Joint Legislative Budget Committee (JLBC) Staff, distributed their staff
memorandum packet (Attachment A) and explained the purpose for this Committee and
the three items the Committee is to review:
e To determine the original purpose of each tax credit
e Establish standards for evaluating and measuring the success or failure of
each credit
e Recommend any potential changes to the credit

Mr. Everill stated that the Legislature usually states the purpose for tax credits. He said
the following standards are used to evaluate tax credits:
e Context
Rationale for Implementation
Complexity
Revenue Impact
Economic focus



The Committee has to deal with confidentiality issues, timeliness of data, and lack of
performance measures. Many of the credits currently on the books do not have
performance measures.

Hans Olofsson, JLBC Staff, explained the Family Income Tax Credit. He explained
the reasons for, the impact of and some potential performance measures of this tax
credit.

Jake Corey, JLBC Staff, explained the Private School Tuition Organization (STO) Tax
Credit. He explained the reasons for, the impact of and some potential performance
measures of this tax, specifying that only the individual credit was reviewed at this time.

Senator Cheuvront questioned Mr. Corey about tracking of students, whether they are
leaving public school for private school. Mr. Corey stated that he did not have definitive
numbers on that issue.

Senator Cheuvront stated that more data is needed so guesses will not be made and
more information is provided on tracking children.

Senator Garcia questioned Mr. Corey about the requirements for scholarships from
STOs. Mr. Corey stated that there are requirements for the STOs to be available to
more than one school but they are not specifically required to look at financials.

Mr. Corey explained the Public School Extracurricular Activity Fee Credit. He explained
the eligibility, contributions, impact and potential performance measures of this tax.

Leatta McLaughlin, JLBC Staff, explained the School Site Donation Credit. She
explained the School Facilities Board’s role, recent trends, and potential performance
measures.

Brian Cary, JLBC Staff, explained the Solar Stub Out/Electric Recharge Outlet Credit.
He explained the other solar energy tax credits that are available, that the credit is rarely
claimed, and the recent trends. He explained that the technology this credit was
intended for has been phased out and no longer in use.

Recommendations and Public Testimony

Representative Huffman stated that the Committee would discuss each credit as they
are listed. He asked for any questions or comments on the family income tax credit.

Representative Yarbrough moved the individual family income tax
credit be continued and placed on the Income Tax Credit Review
Schedule for 2011 and be further amended to be adjusted for
inflation each year.

Joint Legislative Income Tax
Credit Review Committee
December 7, 2006

Page 2



Senator Garcia asked Representative Yarbrough if he would amend his motion to
include carry forward. Representative Huffman stated that he saw no reason to carry
forward tax credits.

Senator Cheuvront stated that the other tax credits are carry forward. He stated that he
is against refundable tax credits.

Representative Yarbrough said the motion stands as is.

Representative Huffman read the names of people registered to speak on the private
school organization credit (Attachment B).

Therese Martin, representing herself, stated that her child is one that left public
school to attend private school. She said that her son is autistic and because of her
son’s special needs she was forced to choose a private school which she would not be
able to afford without the private school tuition organization credit.

Drake Housley, student, stated that he is getting a better education and able to be in a
better atmosphere because he goes to a private Christian school and he is only able to
do that because of the private school tuition organization credit.

Jose Magana, student, stated that the atmosphere and education he receives at
private school is very important to him and his ability to grow and thrive. He said that is
only possible with the assistance of the private school tuition organization credit.

Harry Miller, President, Arizona STO Association (ASTOA); Executive Director,
Tuition Organization for Private Schools (TOPS), stated that ASTOA does three
main things: inform, educate, and administrate. He said that ASTOA acts as a
watchdog and works with Department of Revenue (DOR). He stated that the private
school tuition organization credit is very necessary, but asked not to be further
burdened with more paperwork and restrictions.

Representative Huffman stated the Committee would address the current motion by
Representative Yarbrough.

The motion CARRIED by roll call vote of 5-1-4 (Attachment 1).

Representative Huffman stated that the Committee would move on to the school tuition
organization credit and noted the individuals who registered their position on the issues
(Attachment B).

Holly Buss, representing herself, stated that without the private school tuition
organization credit she would not be able to send her three children to a school of her
choice. She said that without the credit her children would be going to public school at
taxpayer’'s expense.

Joint Legislative Income Tax
Credit Review Committee
December 7, 2006

Page 3



Representative Yarbrough moved the individual private school
tuition organization credit be continued and placed on the Income
Tax Credit Review Schedule for 2011.

Senator Cheuvront questioned if the credit continues even if this committee votes it
down.

Representative Huffman stated that this committee only puts forth recommendations.

Senator Cheuvront stated that the information he has seen from DOR does not indicate
how the money is being spent or who it is being spent on. He asked for a little more
transparency for this tax credit.

Senator Cheuvront moved an amendment to the motion that with the
reauthorization of this tax credit that there is more transparency with
the tax credits. The motion FAILED by voice vote.

The motion to continue and place on the Income Tax Credit Review
Schedule for 2011 the individual private school tuition organization
credit CARRIED with aroll call vote of 5-1-4 (Attachment 2).

Senator Cheuvront stated that it was shown with the alternative fuels legislation what
happens without transparency and with these tax credits there is no way to know how
the money is being spent. He said he has been working for several years trying to bring
transparency and is working to bring it to the ballot in 2008.

Representative Huffman stated that the next item was individual public school
extracurricular activity fee credit and asked for any comments or discussion.

Representative Yarbrough moved the individual public school
extracurricular activity fee credit be continued and placed on the
Income Tax Credit Review Schedule for 2011. The motion CARRIED
by roll call vote of 5-1-4 (Attachment 3).

Representative Huffman stated that the next item was credits for donation of school
sites and asked for any comments or discussion.

Representative Yarbrough moved the individual and corporate
school site donation credits be continued and placed on the Income
Tax Credit Review Schedule for 2011. The motion CARRIED by roll
call vote of 6-0-4 (Attachment 4).

Representative Huffman stated that the last item on the agenda was the continuation of
the credit for solar hot water stub outs and electric vehicle recharge outlets and asked
for any comments or discussion.

Joint Legislative Income Tax
Credit Review Committee
December 7, 2006

Page 4



Representative Yarbrough moved the individual and corporate solar
hot water heater plumbing stub outs and electric vehicle recharge
outlet credits be eliminated. The motion CARRIED by roll call vote of
6-0-4 (Attachment 5).

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:40 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Shelley Ponce
Committee Secretary

(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate’s Office/Resource Center, Room 115.)

Joint Legislative Income Tax
Credit Review Committee
December 7, 2006

Page 5




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


